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Dear Ms Niles

Subject: Tallawarra Concept Plan MP 09_0131 Modification 1 -Addendum Response To
Submissions

Thank you for your e-mail dated 22 November 2019 requesting comments on the addendum
Response To Submissions letter and appendices prepared by Cardno (12 November 2019). In
response, we offer the following comments and further detailed advice at Attachment A:

Aboriginal Cultural Heritage

The key issues for the Aboriginal cultural heritage assessment are:

The timing of the archaeological test excavations - we recommend this is pre-approval
so that the decision maker can consider the test excavation results.

Timing of the Aboriginal cultural heritage management plan (CHMP) - we note this is
proposed to be prepared in two stages, prior to first DAs in the central/northern and
southern precincts respectively.

Appropriate heritage management of site 52-5-0615 (TLPD AFT 9) a fig tree with
Aboriginal cultural values.

The additional information that has been provided indicates that archaeological test excavations
have not yet occurred, but an Aboriginal Heritage Impact Permit (AHIP) application to allow those
excavations was submitted to us on 25 November 2019. We are currently assessing this
application. An Aboriginal cultural heritage management plan has also not yet been provided,
however, the submission indicates that this is being prepared in consultation with the Registered
Aboriginal Parties.

The applicant is seeking approval of the superlot subdivision based on their commitment to protect
Aboriginal heritage through the future CHMP and AHIP processes. We note that the CHMP is to be
provided in two parts. The first part is proposed to be submitted at the time of the superlot
subdivision for the Central and Northern Precincts and the second part prior to lodgement of the
first DA in the Southern Precinct following superlot subdivision. We support this timing provided
that there is flexibility to adjust the final design to avoid harm to Aboriginal heritage as required and
based on the test excavation results. This may require changes to the design to:

• Avoid harm to site 52-5-0615 (the fig tree).

• Avoid harm to sites as required based on the results of the test excavations.

We recommend the CHMP is provided to the Department at an early stage to allow for consultation
with Biodiversity & Conservation staff, and provide the best opportunity to integrate heritage
protection requirements with the approvals process.
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Biodiversity & Offsets

It does not appear that the matters raised in our initial response of July 2018 (see Attachment A),
and subsequently re-referred to our June 2019 RTS submission, have been addressed. As such it
is not why the matter remains unaddressed in RTS documents and request the proponent attend to
the issues in order to appropriately determine this aspect of the proposal.

Floodplain Risk Management

As detailed in previous advice, isolation and accessibility to the site in the event of a large flood
and the associated implications to public safety of an increased population has not been
addressed. The public safety risk sits with the whole future community including proposed
floodplain development and areas above the probable maximum flood that are isolated. We note
that the proponent has suggested this matter be addressed at a later stage through the DCP
however there has been no assessment of what measures could be incorporated into the
masterplan, noting the current access is inundated in floods less than the 1% AEP design event.

We therefore maintain that DPIE's Planning and Assessment group liaise further with council and
the SES on this matter to determine whether the proposal is consistent with council's flood access
strategy and local emergency response arrangements to satisfy itself that risks to public safety in
the event of a major flood has been considered in its determination. This will also ensure that flood
liability is addressed at the planning stage, rather than flood mitigation measures being required
retrospectively by government.

Water Quality

Our previous advice on this proposal raised concerns that the water quality assessment was not
prepared in accordance with the risk-based decision-making framework (RBF) for Lake lllawarra as
detailed in the lllawarra Shoalhaven Regional Plan 2015. The additional information provides a
summary of the RBF and highlights that the development site is mapped within the water quality
"improve" zone under the Lake lllawarra RBF benefit map.

It also highlights that the implementation of the WSUD strategy will result in an improvement to
water quality and is consistent with the RBF "improve" zone as per the benefit map. We note that
the MUSIC modelling completed in support oftheWSUD strategy is limited to modelling pollutant
reductions only. Whilst the water quality assessment has not been prepared strictly in accordance
with the RBF, it is demonstrated through the proposed WSUD strategy that the Wollongong DCP
2009 water quality targets are able to be met.

If you have any questions about this advice, please do not hesitate to contact Mr Calvin Houlison,
Senior Conservation Planning Officer, via calvin.houlison@environment.nsw.gov.au or 4224 4179.

Yours sincerely

Chris Page

Senior Team Leader, Planning (Illawarra) > y
Biodiversity & Conservation Division
Environment, Energy and Science

Attachment A: DPIE Biodiversity & Conservation Division Detailed Comments
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ATTACHMENT A: DPIE BIODIVERSITY & CONSERVATION DIVISION DETAILED COMMENTS  

 

1. Aboriginal Cultural Heritage 

Meeting with the applicant to discuss the Aboriginal cultural heritage assessment 

DPIE Aboriginal cultural heritage regulation staff met with the applicant on 14 August 2019. Key 

outcomes from that meeting were:  

• We are open to options for an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Management Plan (CHMP) that 
includes principles and commitments for managing the Aboriginal cultural heritage assessment 
process, and for sequencing works in relation to the Northern, Central and Southern Precincts.  

• We could provide comments on a draft CHMP. 

• The DPIE Planning and Assessment team has the approval role and will need to be satisfied 
of the adequacy of the Aboriginal cultural heritage management assessment in relation to the 
Concept Plan approval.  

• The formal Aboriginal community consultation process should start as soon as possible as an 
Aboriginal heritage impact permit (AHIP) is required to conduct archaeological test 
excavations.  

The test excavations have not yet been conducted but the process is underway 

Without the test excavation results the full impact of the proposal on Aboriginal heritage is not 

known. On 25 November 2019 we received an application for an AHIP to allow the test 

excavations to proceed. We are currently assessing this application.   

AHIP requirements 

It is likely a sequence of AHIPs will be required:   
1. Test excavation AHIP for the combined Northern precinct and transmission line (application 

received). 
2. AHIP to construct the transmission line (we suggest this also considers any ancillary areas, 

stockpile, access routes etc that are needed). 
3. Subsequent AHIP(s) to construct the subdivision to be submitted at the DA stage. This is likely 

to require the transmission line AHIP to be surrendered to avoid overlapping permits.  

This sequencing considers our understanding of the applicant’s requirements for timing of the 
transmission line and subdivision construction.  

Preparation of an Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Management Plan (CHMP) 

We support preparing the AHMP at an early stage of the project development, ideally before 

project approval. The CHMP must be prepared in consultation with the Registered Aboriginal 

Parties. We understand from the applicant’s submission that a draft CHMP is being prepared and 

will be provided to our office.  

We do not object to the proposed wording of Condition 8 around staging the Cultural Heritage 

Management Plan, with Stage 1 being the Northern and Central Precinct and Stage 2 applying to 

the Southern Precinct.  

Staging of the Concept Plan modification and subsequent development plan approvals 

We note that the CHMP is to be provided in two parts. We support the proposed timing provided 

that there is flexibility to adjust the final design to avoid harm to Aboriginal heritage as required and 

based on the test excavation results. This may require changes to the design to avoid harm to site 

52-5-0615 (the fig tree), and to avoid harm to sites as required based on the results of the test 

excavations.  

http://www.dpie.nsw.gov.au/
http://www.dpie.nsw.gov.au/
http://www.dpie.nsw.gov.au/
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Proposed relocation of the fig tree at site 52-5-0615 

The proposed relocation of the fig tree at site 52-5-0615 must be discussed with the Registered 

Aboriginal Parties. We suggest that relocating this tree may harm the cultural values. We 

understand from the applicant’s submission that Aboriginal community consultation on this matter 

is underway. 

We do not support an approval that allows site 52-5-0615 to be relocated without having first 

consulted with the Aboriginal community and considered the outcomes of that consultation. 

We support the applicant’s statement that if the Aboriginal community consultation does not 

support relocating the fig tree then strategies to retain the tree will be proposed.  

Transmission Line in Northern Precinct 

The applicant has submitted a due diligence assessment (Biosis 2019) covering the land where 

works to the transmission line are required in the Northern Precinct. Due diligence is a legal 

defence only and we have no role in approving or certifying compliance with the due diligence 

process.  

However, the first recommendation of the due diligence report is that an AHIP application be 

submitted to allow archaeological test excavations. This has occurred and the process is underway 

as outlined above.  

Avoiding harm to site 52-5-0523, Central Precinct 

We support efforts to avoid harm to a potential archaeological deposit (PAD) recorded as site 52-5-

0523 on the eastern side of the Central Precinct. However, we note that the boundaries of this 

PAD have not been determined through archaeological test excavation, and limited detail is 

provided on how the site boundaries have been established to inform the boundary change. 

Road construction 

We note that the roads linking the Northern and Central Precincts, and any other ancillary areas, 

must also be subject to appropriate Aboriginal heritage assessment. 

  

http://www.dpie.nsw.gov.au/
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2. Previous Unaddressed Issues from July 2018 Submission
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